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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO 

{P 
CONCERl'iED CITIZENS 
FOR ~-JCLE~~ SAFETY, INC. 
and PATRICK JEROME CF~VEZ, 

Plaintiffs, 

~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

~ 
v. Civ. No. 94-1039 to! ~· 

UNITED STATES DEP A..~TMENT 
OF ~.).{ERG::' and SIEGFRIED S. HECK~R, 

Defendants. 

CONSE21"T D~CREt 

I. RECITATIONS 

w~ereas, the parties to this action are Plaintiffs Co~cerr.ed 

Citize~s fer Nuclear Safety ( 11 CCNS") and Pa~rick Je:-or.-.~ Chavez 

a:-:d De!enc!ants United States Depar~rr:ent of E~e:-gy (!'DOE") anC. 

Siegfriee s. Hecker; 

fu1ereas, Plaintiffs filed suit agains~ Defendants allesing 

that Los Alamos National Laboratory ( "U.NL" or "Laboratory") is 

not in full compliance with the national e:nission stand.a:::-d fo:::-

ra~ionuclides at DOE facilities, set forth at ~o C.F.R. §5 61.90-

61.97 ("Subpart H"); 

· Hhereas·, on April 2, 1996, the Court granted partial sun.'tlary 

judgmedt to Plaintiffs based upon DOE's admission· that 31 of 33 

J 

"major" stacks and associated quality assurance programs were. not 
J 

in compliance with subpart H at the time Plaintiffs filed thei~ 

motion for partial summary judgment; 
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~~ereas, DOE contends that it achieved full compliance with 

Subpart n on or about June 3, 1996; 

Whereas, DOE further contends that Congress has not waived 

DOE's sovereign i~~unity for the assessment of civil penalties 

against it under the Clean Air Act; 

~nereas, Plaintiffs dispute DOE's clai~ of full compliance 

and non-waiver of sovereign immunity for the assessrne~t of 

penalties and, furthermore, seek injunctive relief, an assessment 
. .::""" . . 
of penalties, an order requiring the performance of 

enviro~entally beneficial projects, and recovery of their 

litigation costs and fees; 

w~~ereas, the parties wish to resolve this action without 

aeditional litigation and agree that it is in the public inter~st 

to enter into this Consent Decree, ~ithout further acjudicaticn 

of the issues raisec in this case; and 

Wnereas, the parties consider this Consent Decree, when 

viewed together with the Settle~ent Agree~ent dated January 14, 

1997 between CCNS and DOE, to be a just, fair, ade~uate and 

equitable resolution of these issues. 

NOW THEREFORE, before the taking of any further testimony, 

•ithout trial or fur~~er admission of any issue of fact or law, 

and upon the consent of the parties, it is hereby ordered 

adjudg~¢ and decreed that: 
J 

J II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. This Court has'jurisdicticn over the subject matter 

of this action and over the parties pursuant to Section J04(a} (1) 
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of the Clean Air Act, 42 u.s.c. § 7604(a) (1), and 28 u.s.c. s 

1331. 

2. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 42 u.s.c. 

S 7604 (c). 

III. APPLICABILITY 

3. This Decree shall apply to and be binding upon the 

Parties, their members, delegatees and assigns. The undersigned 

representatives certify that they are authorized by the Party or 

Parties whom they represent to enter in to this Decree and to 

execute and legally bind that Party or Parties to the te~ms and 

conditions of this Decree. Signature by co~nsel for t~e 

Department of Justice on behalf of DOE shall bind the Vr.ited 

States to the te~s of this Decree. 

IV. 1-.G?.EED U?ON s;TTLEMENT P?.OVISIONS 

4. Cc~prehensive Technical ·Aucits. COE agrees ~o 

contract ~or, fund and facilitate perfor~ance of the 

co~prehensive independent technical audits described in this 

sect. ion. 

4.1. Purpose. The purpose of the coh-prehensive 

independent technical a~dits is to verify whether l>~L is in full 

compliance with ~~e Clean Air Act radionuclide NESHAP, 40 C.F.R. 

S 6l.90..z61.97 ("Subpart H11 ) 1 during the terw. of this Decree. 
j 

J 
4.2 Auditor. The technical audits will be 

conducted by John Till, Ph.D, as the independent auditor. He 

will have the authority to assemble an auditing tea~ of 
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appropriate, independent individuals. "Independent" means ~hat 

the auditor and the members of the audit team will have had no 

previous significant relationship with LANL or CCNS. CCNS' 

retained consultants in this case, Institute for Energy and 

Environmental Research, will not serve as members of the audit 

tea~. 

4.3 Consultation The independent technical audit 

team-is free to cons~lt with CCNS, DOE, or any other entity as it 
r 

chooses. 

4.4 Access DOE agrees to provide the 

independent audi~ team with access to facilities and raw data 
. 

promptly upon request, subject to compliance with reasonable 

security, safety and scheduling re~uire~ents of DOE and ~~L. 

CCNS shall be provided, without charge, with copies c: all 

docur.ents copied for the independen~ auditor. CCNS r..ay request 

copies of other data reviewed by the independe~t auditor. In the 

event DOE believes the costs of a CCNS document reques~ are not 

reasonable, pursuant to paragraph 26, .the production of documents 

w-ill be provided only after pay::tent· by CCN.S of reasonable co?y.ing 

charges. DOE will notify CCNS of any decision to contest the 

reasonableness of the costs within 10 days of receipt of any 

request for copies. CCNS may then obtain the copies at its own 

expens~~ without waiver of its rights to seek reimbursement from 
J 

DOE unde~ paragraph 26. 

4.5 Schedule of Audits. The independ~nt 

technical audits will occur on the following schedule: 
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a. The first technical audit will co~~ence 

during calendar year 1997 no later than 90 days after completion 

of the updated radionuclide inventory currently in progress. 

b. A second technical audit will co~~ence 

during calendar year 2000. An updated radionuclide inventorv .. 

will be prepared prior to the commencement of this second audit. 

The second audit will con-... "nence no later than 90 days after 

completion of the updated radionuclide inventory. 

c. A third technical audit will comnence in 

calendar year 2002 if the independent auditpr determines that a 

third technical audit should be conducted. An updated 

radionuclide inventory and an updated description of cperatior.s 

and processes at LA!iL that have changed since the las~ audit a~d 

·which involv·e air e::tissions res-ulated under S1..:bpart H w·ill be 

preparec anc provided to the auditor prior to June, 2002. The 

indepe~dent auditor may meet with CCNS and its consultan~s and 

~!th DOE prior to ~~e auditor determining the scope and specific 

data to be included in the updated description of operations and 

processes. The independent auditor, based. upcn revie~ of these 

eccu~e~ts and upcn the results cf the second audit, will 

dete=mine whether, in his independent jud~.ent, a thi~d technical 

audit should be conducted. 

J d. In the event that the third technical 
~ 

audit idyntifies substantiv~ deficiencies with compliance with 

Subpart R that the auditor believes require corrective actions, a 

fourth technical audit will co~~ence no later than the end of 
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calend~r year 2003. The scope of the fourth technical audit 

shall be limited to determining whether the necessary corrective 

actions identified in the third technical audit have been 

satisfactorily accomplished. 

4.6 Scooe of Audits. The scope and depth of the 

technical audits will be determined by the independen~ audita~, 

exercising sound scientific judgment, subject to the cost limits 

set forth below. The parameters of the audits may include, but 
-z-

are not limited to the following: 

a. analysis of the existing radicnuclide 

moni taring systems .. 

b. review of the application of the 

~ethodology used to determine the potential effective dose 

equivalent, inclu~ing radionuclide inventory and underlying data. 

c. examination of the content and 

imple~entation o! the quality assurance progra~s. 

Prior to each audit, the auditor will submit to DOE and CCNS a 

proposed scope of work and budget. If the proposed budget 

exceeds $100,000, then DOE must approve the budget. DOE's budget 

approval will not be unreasonably withheld. In the event DOE 

deternines not to approve any submitted budget, it shall initiate 

the .did~ute resolution process set forth in Section VII below 
J 

and, if unsuccessful in resolving the dispute in that forum, 
J 

shall ~ithin five days of exhausting the dispute resolution 

process, file a motion with the Court to determine ~hether the 
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proposed budget should be funded. DOE shall pay the reasonable 

costs, if any, of the independent auditor incurred in any dispute 

resolution or Court proceeding under this section. In no ~vent 

shall the cost of the first audit exceed $300,000. In no event 

shall the cost of the second audit exceed $2oo,oco. In no event 

shall the cost of the third audit exceed SlSO,OOO. In no event 

shall the cost of the fourth audit exceed $50,000. 

4.7 Reoorts. The independent auditor ~ill issue 

a report at the end of each audit. Minority opinions within the 

audit team may be noted in ~~e report. Within 10 days cf receip~ 

of each audit repo~t, DOE ~ill provide a copy to EPA Region VI, 

~ail a copy to CCNS and place a copy in the Los Alamos National 

Laboratory Reading Rocm. The findings and results of the audits 

are non-binding. 

4.8. Non-interferpnce. The parties will not 

-
interfere in the timely, independent, or cowprehensive completion 

of the audits. 

4 .• 9 Pavment. Invoices from the independent 

auditor will b~ submitted monthly to both CCNS and DOE. Within 

45 days of approval of each budget.subrnitted by the independent. 

auditor 1 DOE shall fund an account established and ad~inistered 

by the United States Depa~tment of.Justice.fcr payment of costs 

of the lndependent audit. The account shall be fully funded wi~h 
J 
J 

the totaj amount of the approved budget. The reasonable charges 

of the independent auditor shall be suboitted by DOE to the 

Oepartm~nt of Justice account administrator within 20 days of 
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receipt by DOE, and shall be paid promptly by the Department of 

Justice. 

4.10 FFCA Audits. Pursuant to the Federal 

Facility Compliance Agreement between DOE and the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency, DOE is obligated to conduct 

certain exte~nal ineependent audits ("FFCA Audits") of the 

programs and procedures used to ~emonstrate compliance ~ith 

Subp~rt H. In the event DOE arranges for FFCA Audits in addition 
"" . . 

to those provided in this Decree during the term of the F~deral 

Facility Compliance Agreement, CCNS shall be given a~ opportunity 

to meet with the FFCA auditor during each such audit. 

of $150,000 to the Treasury of the United States i~ ccmpro~ise o: 

eisputed claims for civil pena~ties in this case unce= the 

citizen suit provisicn of the Clean Air Act. 

6. ~nvirc~ent~lly Ee~eficial Projects 

6.1 A!R~ET In addition to the 17 A~S~ET stations 

operated as Subpart H compliance stations pursuant tc the Federal 

Facility Compliance ~greernent between DOE and the Unit~d States 

Environmental Protection Agency, DOE will, fer five ye2=s fron 

the entry of ~~is Decree 

a. continue the operation of AiruiET stations 

27, 30, 14, and 36,· as identified on the hand~ritten not~tions on 
J 

the Stru;ture Location maps, TA-54, provided by DOE and attached 

t~ this Decree as Exhibit 1. These stations will be operated to 
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the same standards as a Subpart H compliance station co~~encing 

within 30 days of entry of this Decree. 

b. commencing within 6 months after entry of 

this Decree, operate one additional AIRNET station at TA-33 and 

one additional AI&~ET station located in the greater Santa Fe 

area. The general location of these AI~~ET stations will be 

determined jointly by DOE and CCNS. These two additional AI~~ET 

stations will operated to the same standa~ds as Subpart H 

compliance statior.s. 

c. On a quarterly basis, raw da~a and 

analysis from the additional AIRNET stations referred to in 

subparagraphs a and· b above shall be p~oviC.ed to CCNS a:;.d a 

placed in the Los Alamos Reading Room. Each quarte~ly data 

package will include air sampling data from the previous quar~=~-

6.2 Ther~olum~nescent Dosimeters. 

Thermo luminescent dosimet-ers ( 11 TLDs 11 } capab::..e of detecting ga::-~'"1a 

and the~al neutron emissions will be. placed at the 17 existi~s 

compliance AIRNET stations within 60 days of entry of this 

Decree. In addition, TLDs will be placed as follo~s: 

a. Approximately 11 TLDs around the Th-5J 

facility, including any of its lagoons co~taining radioactive 

material. 

J b. 
J 

Approximately 7 Albedo TLDs en the nc~tf'J., 

J 
east and south sides of TA-18. 

J 

c. 1-.pproximately 16 TLDs around TP..-50. 

d. Approximately 33 TLDs around TA-54. 
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a. Approximately 7 TLDs around TA-16, s-

Site. 

f. Approximately 15 TLDs around TA-15 firing 

sites. 

These TLDs will be operated for a period of five years from entry 

of this Decree. For purposes of quality assurance, for a period 

of two years from entry of this Decree, DOE will place a second 

TLD ~t 10% of the TLO locations identified above, rotated to a 
:-

different TLD site on a quarterly basis. DOE ~ill send thes~ 

~~ality assu~ance TLDs to an independent la~cratory fer analysis. 

Data generatad fro~ the TLDs and the quality assurance ?LOs will 

be analyzed quarter~y. On a quarterly basis, the TLD raw data 

and analyses and the quality assurance raw data and analyses w~ll 

be provided. to CCNS and placed in the Los Alar:tos Na':.io:1al 

Labcratc~y Reading Room. Eac~ quarterly cata packaqe will 

include TLD results from the previous quarter. 

6.3. NewNet DOE agrees tc operate through 

September 2002 the current northern New Me~dco NewNet system. 

DO£ will make northern New Mexico NewNet data available via a Web 

sit:e on the Internet in a "near real time" manner, in English and 

Spanish. The data will be collected continuously and will be 

made available to the public on the Internet in the same form and 

at the same time that it is provided to DOE and LANL. 
)) 

B. Siecrfried Hecker 
J 

7. President's Council on National Laboratories. 

Within JO days of entry of this Decree, Siegfried S. Hecker, 
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while he remains director of LANL, shall use the influence of his 

office and,his best efforts to persuade the Environ~ent, Safety & 

Health Panel, which advises the University of California's 

President's council on National Laboratories, to allocate one day 

of each annual visit to Ne•..; Mexico to hear environrnental_i~sues 

relating to the Labo~atory. If the Panel allocates ti~e during 

its annual visit to hear environmental issues, UUfL e~ployees, 

CCN~and other members of the publ.i:c will be invitee tc at.t:end. 

LANL staff shall be made available for follow-up as requested by 

the Panel. 

S. Meetinc ~ith CCNS. Within 45 cays of entry of this 

Decree, ¥~. Hecker ~ill meet with CCNS to hear CCNS's concerns 

and suggestions regarding the protection of e~ployees fro~ 

retaliation or harasswent fer voicing enviror.~ental concerns, and 

regarding CC..'iS 1 environrr.ental concerns. 1 

9. Co~~~~ity Meetincrs Mr. F.ecker, ~hile he is 

Director of the Laboratory 1 shall initiate a progra~ whereby 

appropriate members of the Laboratory's Environment, Saf~ty & 

Health technical staff will be made available for discussions 

relating to environ~ental issues with interested te~bers of the 

public en a quarterly basis. These meetings will be announced in 

advance 1 and ~~ose interested in participating should give 

reasona~e notice of the issues of concern to them so that 
J 

J 

1 G. Thomas Todd, in his capacity as Ma~ager a: the 

Department of Energy, Los Ala~os Area Office, has agreed to 
._, d .... h. . ... . 
a~cen ~· 1s ~ee~1ng. 

ll 
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appropriate personnel can be scheduled to attend. The first such 

meeting shall occur within 90 days of entry of this Decree. 

V. FUNPING 

10. Payments or obligations imposed upon DOE are 

subj~ct to the availability of appropriated funds. No provision 

of this Decree shall be interpreted as or constitute a commitment 

or requirement that DOE obligate ?r pay funds in contravention of 

the ~ti-Oeficiency Act, 31 u.s.c. § 1341 or any other applicable 

la~ or regulat~on. DOE represents that the source of funding for 

its obligations unde= this Decree shall be annual DC2 

appropriations for 9peration of ~~L and that funding such 

obligations does not require a specific appropriation from 

Congress. In the event that sufficient appropriate~ funding lS 

not available, the Parties will attempt to adjust a~y affected 

timetables accordingly. _.,. f d" . 
.:.._~ un lng J.s not receivec, Plaintiffs 

may seek available legal and equitable remedies, including 

termination of this Decree. 

VI. INABILITY TO PERFO~·f 

11. If DOE is or may be unable to comply with any 

requ.ir.e::tent of this Decree because of a "force :majeure" even\:, 

DOE may request of Plaintiffs a modification of that requir~ffier.t. 

12. As soon as practic~ble after DOE knows that any 

require~rnt of this Decree will not be met, DOE shall promptly 
J 

notify P~aintiffs in writing. such notice shall describe the 

cause and duration of the anticipated delay, the measures taken 

or to be taken to mitigate the anticipated delay, and a proposed 
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revised schedule for meeting the requirement. DOE may also state 

in such notice that it constitutes a written statement of dispute 

for purposes of initiating the dispute resolution process. 

13. In any judicial proceeding seeking to enfocce the 

terms of this Decree andjor to find DOE in contempt for f~ilure 

to comply or for delay in compliance with such terms, DOE may 

raise as a defense that such failure or de·lay was caused by a 

"for<;..e majeure" event. In any such judicial proceeding, 

Plaintiffs may seek available iegal and equitable remed~es, 

including termination of this Decree. 

14. A "Fprce Majeure" event is defined as any event a~ 

circumstance arising from causes beyond the reasonable control o: 

DOE that cannot be overcome by due diligence and that causes a 

celay in or prevents the performance of any o~ligation under ..... 
'-'I::..S 

Decree. 

VII. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES 

15. Each Party shall exhaust the provisions of this 

Section VII with respect to any potential dispute between the~ 

concerning this Consent Decree prior to seeking Court resolution 

of the dispute. 

16. To initiate Dispute Resolution, the disputing 

Party shall submit to the other Party a written statement setting 

forth th; nature of the dispute, the work affected by the 

J 

dispute, Jthe disputing Party's position with respect to the 

dispute, and the information the disputing Party is relying upon 

to support its position. 

13 
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17. The disputing Party shall engage the other Party 

in informal Dispute Resolution. During this informal Disoute 
. . 

Resolution period, ~hich shall not exceed 10 working ~ays, the 

Parties shall meet as many times as both deem necessary to 

discuss and attempt resolution of the dispute. If resolution of 

the dispute is not reached; either party may file a motion with 

this Court to resolve the underlying dispute. If this Decree 

plac~• a burden on a party to seek resolution by the Court, that 

party shall initiate the Court proceeding. 

18. The pendency cf any dispute under this Section 

shall not extend the time allo~ed for perforhlance of the work 

required by this Decree, except that the time period for 

completion of any work directly affected by a sood-faith dispute 

shall b~ exte~ded for at least a period of time e~ual to the 

actual tine taken to resolve it pursua~t to this Section VII. 

All ele~e~ts of the work required by this Decree which are not 

directly affected by the dispute shall conti~~e and be completed 

in accordance with the Decree. 

19. In attempting to resolve any dispute un~er this 

section, the Parties may, by written asreement of the party 

obligated to perform and CCNS, modify or waive the procedures of 

this section as appropriate, including but not limited to an 

extensiclp of_the times set forth herein. Such modifications will 

J 

become erfective upon subsequent approval by the Court. 
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VIII. RELEASES AND RESERVATIONS 

20. Plaintiff~ hereby release, covenant not to sue and 

not to bring any civil, or seek any administrative action against 

the United States or any department or agency thereof, or any 

past or present officer, director, official employee, agent or 

contractor of the United States, or the contractor's officers, 

directors or employees, including the Regents of the University 

of California, or their successors or assigns, but not including 

Siegfried Hecker, ~ith resp~ct·to all claims for violation of 

Subparts A and H of 40 C.F.R. Part 61, including civil penalties 

and injunctive reli~f, at ~~L occurring from ~arch 15, 1990 

through the date of·entry of this Decree. Plaintiffs further 

covenant anc agree that they will not file suit for alleged 

violations, if any, occurring after the entry of this Decree 

until 90 days after the completion of the first independen~ 

technical audit described in paragraph 4.5(a) above. 

21. Plaintiffs hereby release, covenant not to sue and 

not to bring any civil, or seek any administrative action against 

Siegfried Hecker, his successors or ass.igns, with respect to all 

claims ~hie~ were alleged against M~. Hecker in the First Amended 

Coi:\plaint. 

22. Nothing in this Decree shall preclude or restrict 

any rigHt or authority of the President of the United states 
J 
J 

containeq in 33 u.s.c. S 1323, 42 u.s.c S 6961, 42 u.s.c. S 7~18 

or 42 U.s.c. S 9620(j) to exempt ~~L from any provisions of the 

Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act or the Resource Cons~rvation 

15 
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and Recovery Act. Nothing in this Decree shall preclude or 

restrict the authority of the United States Environ~ental 

Protection Agency to enforce provisions of the Clean Air Act at 

IX. USE OF DECREE 

23. This Decree was negotiated and executed by the 

parties in good faith to avoid expensive and protracted 

litigation and is a settlement of· claims and defenses which '.olere 

vigolfOusly contested, denied and disputed as to validi-r.y and 

amount. This Decree shall not cons.titute an admission or 

adjudication with respect to any alle~ation made by any Par~y. 

Moreover, this Decree shall not constitute an admission of any 

wrongdoing, misconduct or liability on the part of Siegfried s. 

Heeke=, DOE, ar.y of the DOE's officers, or any of the DOS's 

contrac~ors. Further, this Decree shall not cons~i"t.~te an 

acknowlecg~~ent by Plaintiffs that the=e was no wro~gdoins, 

' d t l' b'•'r m1scon uc or ~a l~l-Y· 

X. NOTICE 

24. Whenever, under the terms of this Decree, notice 

is required to be given or documents to be served, the 

co~~unication shall be ha~d-delivered or sent by fi=st-class mail 

on the date it is due, to the following persons: 

For 
. ) 

Plaintiffs: 
carbl Oppenheimer, Esq. 
LawJOffic~ 9f Simon and Oppe~heimer 
P.O. Box 96~2 
Santa Fe, NM 87504-9612 
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For QOE: 

Alan D. Greenberg 
u.s. Department. of Justice 
999 18th Street, suite 945 
De~ver, co 80202 

and 

Lisa CUinillings 
Department of Energy 
Office of Counsel 
528 35th Street 
Los Alamos, Ne~ Mexico 87544 

For Siecrfried Heeke~: 
.Jonathan Hewes 
Rodey, Dickason, Sloan, Akin & Robb 
Post Office Box 1888 
Albuquerque: New Mexico 87103 

XI. COSTS AND ATTOR~EYS' FEES 

25. Fo= any litigation costs incurred by Pla:n~iffs 

prior to ~he entry of this Decree, Plain~iffs reserve any righ~ 

they may have to seek reasonable costs of litiga~ion, including 

at~orneys' and expert witness fees, against 002 pursuant to 42 

u.s.c. S 7604{d). DOE reserves its right to object to the a~.;ard 

or any such costs and fees. 

26. DOE shall pay Plaintiffs' costs, including 

reasonable expert fees, incurred in monitoring compliance with 

this De~ee, including monitoring the independent audits, 
J 
J pursuant to 42 U.S.c. S 7604(d). DOE reserves the right to 

) 

contest the reasonableness of charges submitted by Plaintiffs. 

All bills shall be paid promptly after receipt by DOE, unless DOE 
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contests the charges submitted by Plaintiffs. DOE shall advise 

Plaintiffs in writing of any amount contested within 30 days of 

receipt of the charges by DOE, and shall submit for payment 

monthly any amounts not so contested. After exhaus~ion of the 

dispute resolution procedure set forth in Section VII, Plainciffs 

may file a motion for payment with the Court, at which time the 

only issues for determination shall be the reasonablen~ss of the 

charges. Plaintiffs shall not be entitled under this paragraph 

26 tb recover attorneys' fees and expert fees incurred in 

performing their o~n audit of ~.NL's compliance with S~bpart H. 

27. DOE shall pay, in the event Plaintiffs are a 

substantially prevailing party, pursuant to 42 u.s.c. § 7604(c): 

(i) Plaintiffs' reasonable costs, including reasonable attorneys' 

fees and expert witness fees, incurred in enforcing against 

v~olaticns of this Decree, and (ii} Plaintiffs' reasonable costs, 

including reasonable attorneys' fees and expert witness fees, 

incurred in other proceedings before this Court and in dispute 

resolution, including proceedings to interpret the provisions of 

this Decree, seek payment of any bill or approval of any budge~. 

XII. SCOPE AND RET£b~ION OF JURISDICTION 

28. Subject to the process set out in Section VII 

(Resolution of Disputes): 

a.J this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matte~ 

J . 

for the purposes of enabling the Parties to apply to the Court 

J 

for any further orders that ~ay be necessary to construe/ 
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implement or enforce compliance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in this Decree; 

b. Nothing in this Decree shall be construed to limit the 

right of a party to seek modification of this Decree based upon a 

change in applicable law 04 upon other appropriate sho~ing. 

29. No motion or other proceeding conce~ning any 

aspect of this Decree shall be properly filed unless all Parties 
.. 

have-Peen provided with written notice at least five business 

r 

days before filing same. 

XIII. QPPORTu~ITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

30. The parties agree and ackno'n·ledge that final 

approval and entry of this proposed Decree are subject to the 

requirements of Section 113(g) of the Clean Air Act, 42 u.s.c. § 

74l3(g}, and the provisions of 28 C.F.R. § S0.7. Clean 

Section ll3{g) provides that notice of this proposed decree be 

given to the public, that the public shall have at least 30 days 

to make any comments, and that the Administrator of the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency or the Attorney General, 

as appropriate, must consider those comments in deciding whe~he~ 

to consent to this decree. The requirements of 28 C.F.R. S 50.7 

provide for a similar opportunity for public comwent prier ~o 

entry of a proposed judgment. The Attorney General shall 

pro~ptlyJcomplete this process. 
) 

} 

19 



. ' . 
Ol/l:l/97 

DOJ Et'lR1U!H'U 

XIII. 

XIII. EfFECTIVE AND TER..~INATION DATES 

31. This Decree shall be effective upon the date of 

its entry by the Court. 

32. The obligations of this Decree and this Cour~'~ 

jurisdiction over this matter shall te~minate upon completion o~ 

all requirements of this Decree. This case shall be dismissed 

with_prejudice ~fter termination of this Decree, upon motion by 

r 

any Party to this Decree. If all requirements of this Decree.are 

completed, the releases set forth in paragraphs 20 and 21 shall 

survive the termination of this Decree. 

I 

I 

I 

J 

~ 
J 
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